
Agricultural Advisory Committee
AGENDA

 
Thursday, April 14, 2016

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street
Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

(a)    The purpose of this Meeting is to consider certain Development Applications as
noted on this meeting Agenda.

(b)    The Reports to Committee concerning the subject development applications are
available on the City's website at www.kelowna.ca.

(c)     All representations to the Agricultural Advisory Committee form part of the
public record.

(d)     As an Advisory Committee of Council, the Agricultural Advisory Comittee will
make a recommendation of support or non-support for each application as part of the
public process.  City Council will consider the application at a future date and,
depending on the nature of the file, will make a decision or a recommendation to the
Agricultural Land Commission.

2. Applications for Consideration

2.1 3754 East Kelowna Road, A16-0003 - Balwinder Singh Khun Khun 3 - 29

The applicant is requesting permission for a Non Farm Use application through
the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) for a permanent dwelling to
accommodate 27 farm workers on the subject property.

2.2 3240 Pooley Road, A16-0007 - Wyn Lewis 30 - 48

T obtain approval from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section
20(3) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act for a ‘non-farm use’ within the
Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) to hold commercial assembly activities such as
Shakespeare plays and music.

2.3 560 Highway 33, A16-0001 - Chancal Bal 49 - 66

To obtain approval from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section
20(3) of the Agricultural Land Commission Act for a “Non-farm use” within the

1

http://www.kelowna.ca/


Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) to hold commercial assembly activities,
including but not limited to weddings, anniversaries, reunions, festivals and
concerts.

3. Minutes 67 - 70

Approve Minutes of the Meeting of March 10, 2016.

4. Old Business

ALC Decisions:

1629 KLO Road – Better Earth Garden Products

5. Next Meeting

May 12, 2016

6. Termination of Meeting

2



COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
 

Date: April 14, 2016 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: Agricultural Advisory Committee (AAC) 

From: Community Planning Department (TY) 

Application: A16-0003 Owner:  
Balwinder Singh Khun Khun 
Harbax Kaur Khun Khun 

Address: 3754 East Kelowna Road Applicant: Balwinder Singh Khun Khun 

Subject: Non-Farm Use for Full Time Farm Help in a Permanent Dwelling  

 

1.0 Purpose 

The applicant is requesting permission for a Non Farm Use application through the Agricultural 
Land Commission (ALC) for a permanent dwelling to accommodate 27 farm workers on the 
subject property. 

2.0 Proposal 

2.1 Background 
 
The applicant owns three parcels of land in the Kelowna area, totaling 13.7 hectares/34 acres of 
tree fruits (apples and cherries). Another 134 acres/54 hectares are leased by the applicant in 
the Kelowna area as part of this fruit tree agricultural operation.  

The current farm operation employs numerous full time staff as well as Temporary Foreign 
Workers through the Seasonal Agriculture Worker Program (SAWP). Accommodations for these 
workers are spread out over the three properties in existing dwellings and buildings. The 
applicant has noted that current structures do not meet federal standards for SAWP employees.  

The subject property is 13 acres in size, active agriculture includes 8 acres of apples and 4 acres 
of cherries. One single family dwelling, one mobile dwelling and an agri-accessory building also 
are located on the property.   

2.2 Project Description 

This application is a Non-Farm Use application to the ALC for Farm Worker Housing. The structure 
is to accommodate a total of 27 Temporary Farm Workers for an eight month long agricultural 
operation.  The dates required by the applicant for worker accommodation are March 5th to 
November 15th. The proposed structure is a two storey, permanent stick build dwelling with a 
concrete footing complete with permanent water and electrical services and an on site septic 
system. The owner/applicant has poured a concrete footing without proper permits. It is 
unknown if the existing illegal footings conform to City Zoning regulations with regards to 
setbacks from side property lines. BC Building Code compliance is also unknown. City of Kelowna 
Building and Permitting Department has issued a Stop Work Order on this property as this 
concrete foundation work was completed without required geotechnical engineering or building 
permits which is unlawful.  

3



DP16-0044 / DVP16-0045 – Page 2 

 
 

 

City of Kelowna Council Policy 03 – Agricultural Land Reserve (A.L.R.) Referrals:  

All approvals for Agricultural Dwellings, Additional for full-time farm workers 
in the Agricultural Land Reserve require a “Non-Farm Use” application to the 
ALC. This Policy does not apply to Temporary Farm Worker Housing.  

The City of Kelowna Community Planning Department has the authority through the ALC and 
Kelowna City Council to permit temporary farm worker housing, provided a development meets 
certain requirements. City Staff do not have the authority to approve development on ALR land 
that does not meet current guidelines. 

Although the proposed employees are authorized through a TFW program, the applicant is 
seeking occupation of the proposed dwelling from March to November of each year, meaning the 
building would only be vacant for 3 months of the year.  The applicant is also proposing to build a 
new structure, with a permanent foundation.  

As the proposed development does not meet the City of Kelowna’s requirements for Temporary 
Farm Worker housing, it must be sent to the ALC as a Non-farm Use Application.  See below a 
table identifying where the proposed development does and does not meet Kelowna guidelines.  

Table 1: Temporary Farm Worker Housing Criteria (TFWH) Proposed Development Checklist 

Requirement 

(Federal regulations & City of 

Kelowna agriculture goals) 

Meet Does 
Not 

Meet 

Explanation 

Workers are required for a 

temporary, seasonal basis 

only. 

 x The proposed application is for three terms of workers 

ranging from 4 – 7 months for a total span of 9 months 

of a year. 

Housing should be provided 

as a “bunkhouse” style 

accommodation, very 

minimalist in nature 

  The overall design of this structure is a very simple, 

minimalist design. The two storey design does take up 

less of a footprint on the land 

Housing should be in an 

existing building or a 

manufactured home 

 x The proposed design does not utilize either of two 

existing dwellings on the subject parcel. It is not a 

mobile/manufactured home, rather a stick build. 

Housing is to be provided 

on a temporary foundation 

(no concrete footings) and 

no basement  

 x The applicant proposes to construct the dwelling on a 

permanent concrete footing. 

The applicant has poured a concrete footing for the 

proposed dwelling without the proper permits.  

Housing located on a 

declared home plate. 

Consideration given where 

topography or agricultural 

viability demonstrated 

  The proposed location does not interfere with current 

or future farming & is in close proximity to an existing 

building & service road.  

Living space to be 7 m2 per 

person. (does not include 

washrooms, laundry, 

storage)  

  Proposed 189 m2 of living space which equals 27 

workers. Federal regulations also require:  

1 shower per 10 workers 

1 toilet per 10 workers 

The applicant is proposing a total of 4 toilets and 4 

showers.  

This would accommodate 40 workers; however, the 

size of living space limits the dwelling to 27 workers.   

4



DP16-0044 / DVP16-0045 – Page 3 

 
 

 

2.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located at 3754 East Kelowna Road,  in the Southeast Sector of Kelowna. 
The property is located on the north side of the East Kelowna Road switchback that leads to 
Hollywood Road South.      

The subject property is in the ALR: land use to the east, west, southwest and south is agricultural 
and is surrounded completely by properties in the ALR (see Map 3). The subject property is also 
within the South East Kelowna Irrigation District (SEKID) water supply area. 

Parcel Summary – 3754 East Kelowna Road: 

 Parcel Size: 5.5 ha (13.07 acres) 
 Elevation: 448.0 to 456.0 metres above sea level (masl) (approx.) 
 
Map 1 - Neighbourhood 

 

 
 

Map 2 – Agricultural Land Reserve 

Hollywood 

Road South 

Subject Property  

 

East Kelowna Road 

5



DP16-0044 / DVP16-0045 – Page 4 

 
 

 
Map 3 – Site Conditions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.4 Proposed Farm Worker Housing Use 

ALR 

(Typical) 

ALR 

(Typical) 

Mobile Home - 
Housing One 

Full Time 
Farm Help 

Worker 

Single Family 
Home - 

Housing One 
Full Time 
Farm Help 

Worker 

Storage Shed 

Foundation 

Location 

Subject Property 

 

6



DP16-0044 / DVP16-0045 – Page 5 

 
 

 
The applicant is proposing to construct a permanent, two storey structure for the purposes of 
housing employees through the Temporary Farm Worker programs.  The applicant farms a total of 
168 acres (34 owned, 134 leased). The attached SAWP contract (Attachment C) shows that a total 
of 40 different individuals will be employed in the farm operation in 2016.  The proposed 
permanent dwelling, under federal regulations has the potential to accommodate 27 workers.  
 

Specific to the subject parcel: 

 A foundation has been poured by the applicant without the proper permits in 2016. 

 The property currently contains one single family dwelling & one mobile home  
  

7



DP16-0044 / DVP16-0045 – Page 6 

 
 

Figure 1. Proposed Elevations 

 

 

8



DP16-0044 / DVP16-0045 – Page 7 

 
 

Figure 2. Proposed Floor Plans 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Main Floor Plan 

Second Floor Plan 

9



DP16-0044 / DVP16-0045 – Page 8 

 
 

 
Map 4 – Future Land Use 

 

 

 

2.5 Zoning of Adjacent Property 

The zoning of adjacent properties is outlined below. 

   Table 1: Zoning of Adjacent Property  

Direction Zoning Designation Land Use Future Land 
Use 

ALR 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 CoK Naturalized Bank  REP & PARK Yes 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 
Agricultural /  
Rural Residential 

REP Yes 

South 
A1c – Agriculture 1 
with Carriage House 

Rural Residential 
REP Yes 

West A1 – Agriculture 1 
CoK Vacant Land (Future 
Road Reserve) 

REP  Yes 

 

  

Resource 
Protection 

Area 

Resource 
Protection 

Area 

Single/Two 
Unit 

Residential 

Major Park 
/Open Space 

Public 

Public 
Services 

/Utilities 

Educational 
/Major 

Institutional 

Subject 

Property 

10



DP16-0044 / DVP16-0045 – Page 9 

 
 

2.6 Development Criteria 

Development criteria for the Agricultural A1t zone include the requirements as noted in 
the table below. 

Table 2: Development Criteria 

CRITERIA A1 (Agricultural) ZONE REQUIREMENTS 

Development Regulations 

Front Yard Setbacks 6.0 m 

Side Yard Setbacks 3.0 m  * 

Maximum Site Coverage 10% 

Maximum height 9.5 m or 2.5 storeys 

 It is unknown if a variance would be required for the foundation that was poured 
without permits.  

3.0 Community Planning 

Council is seeking a recommendation from the AAC with respect to the requested Non-Farm Use 
Application and possible Development Variance Permit in the ALR.  The AAC should consider the 
proposed form of the use of the land and the potential positive and negative impacts of these 
operations on agriculture.  The AAC should consider these requests relative to City policies 
identified above in Schedule A. 

The AAC may also wish to recommend mitigation measures or requirements to the proposed 
operation to ensure that the impacts to agriculture are minimized as appropriate.  Conditions 
may be stipulated both through the Non Farm Use Application and Farm Protection Development 
Permit and also on an annual basis as a part of a business license renewal. 

 

Report prepared by: 

     

Tracey Yuzik, Planner 
 

Reviewed by:  Todd Cashin, Suburban and Rural Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Attachment A – Policies 
Attachment B – Comments 
Attachment C – SAWP Contract 
Proposed Plans and Elevations 
Inventory of land owned & leased by the applicant 
Agricultural Land Capability & Soil Class maps 
 

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
 

Date: April 14, 2015 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: Agricultural Advisory Committee (AAC) 

From: Community Planning Department (MS) 

Application: A16-0007 Owner:  Wyn Lewis 
Marion Lewis 

Address: 3240 Pooley Road Applicant: Wyn Lewis 

Subject: Application to the ALC for a Non-Farm Use (Parking Lot and Special Events)  

 

1.0 Purpose 

T obtain approval from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section 20(3) of the 
Agricultural Land Commission Act for a ‘non-farm use’ within the Agricultural Land Reserve (ALR) 
to hold commercial assembly activities such as Shakespeare plays and music. 

2.0 Proposal 

2.1 Background 

Okanaganvilla Estate Winery was established in 2008, with 6 acres of grapes planted. The 
development of the property to date has included: 

 2009 – Building Permit issued to turn existing farm house (main floor only) to a wine shop; 

 2011 – Received a ‘Winery Special Event Endorsement’ liquor license to Council, for the 
Courtyard of their house for theatre events; and 

 Currently – a concurrent liquor license application to extend their liquor license to the 
upstairs and balcony of their tasting room, and to upgrade to a lounge license. 

The Ministry of Agriculture’s Discussion Paper and Proposed Minister’s Bylaw Standards – 
Regulating Agri-tourism and Farm Retail Sales in the Agricultural Land Reserve1 indicates that 
commercial assembly activities require ALC approval as a Non-farm use in the ALR. 
Notwithstanding that the Discussion Paper has not been yet adopted as a Minister’s Standard, this 
application is requesting approval to hold theatre and music events in the courtyard of their 
home. The events, including Shakespeare plays and the Phantom of the Opera, are held for 
audiences of 200 people up to ten times a year in the summer.  Wine from the vineyard is sold 
during the intermission. In addition, they hold live music events are held in their picnic area for 
guests during the weekends through the summer. The application seeks to authorize the land use 
through the ALC, to work in concert with the liquor license endorsement approval for special 
events already received in 2011. 

                                                      
1
 Ministry of Agriculture, Strengthening Farming Program Innovation and Adaptation Services Branch, Sept. 14, 2015. 

Regulating Agri-tourism and Farm Retail Sales in the Agricultural Land Reserve. 

30



A16-0007 – Page 2 

 
 

 

2.2 Project Description 

The applicant is requesting a Non-Farm Use to allow up to 12 theatre related commercial 
assemblies per year in the courtyard of their home, and weekend live music events in their picnic 
area on weekends through the summer. The theatre events have been occurring on the property 
since 2011, when a Winery Special Event Liquor License Endorsement was approved by Council2. 
In order to establish authorization for the land use that corresponds to the liquor license 
endorsement. 

In order to further support the success of the special events to date, an onsite parking lot will be 
built along the front of the property (see below). The parking proposal includes: 

 Build a 0.5 acre (0.2 ha) parking lot along the front of the property; 

 surface the new parking area with gravel; 

 keep existing hedges along the west and south property lines; and 

 reduce existing parking near the tasting room from 20 to 10 paved handicapped stalls. 

The parking is planned where the existing vines have been damaged by frost, and no crop was 
grown in 2014 or 2015. To compensate for the vines removed for parking, the applicant will 
interplant their existing vineyards, doubling the yield of a portion of the vineyard. This spacing 
has been used at the north end of the property. 

2.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the Southeast Kelowna Sector of the City and is within the 
Agricultural Land Reserve.  The Future Land Use of the property is Resource Protection Area 
(REP).  It is zoned A1 – Agriculture 1 (Maps 1 – 4, below) and is outside of the Permanent Growth 
Boundary.   

The property currently has 6 acres of grapes, 2 acres of apples, 2 acres for the Farm Residential 
Footprint, 1 acre for the winery, and 0.5 acres of roads and parking. The grades are fairly level 
near Pooley Road, but the property slopes steeply to the north. 

Parcel Summary – 3240 Pooley Road: 

 Parcel Size: 4.6 ha (11.3 acres) 
 Elevation: 445 to 472 metres above sea level (masl) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

                                                      
2
 City of Kelowna, May 31, 2011. Minutes of Council Meeting, May 31, 2011. 

31



A16-0007 – Page 3 

 
 

Map 1 – Courtyard Area 

 

 
  

32



A16-0007 – Page 4 

 
 

Map 2 – Wine Tasting Facility 

 
  

33



A16-0007 – Page 5 

 
 

Zoning and land uses adjacent to the property are as follows: 

Table 1:  Zoning and Land Use of Adjacent Property 

Direction Zoning ALR Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes 
Agriculture /  

Apples & Cherries 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes 
Agriculture /  

Apples 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes 
Agriculture /  

Apples 

West  A1 – Agriculture 1 No 
Agriculture /  

Apples 

 
 

Map 3 - Neighbourhood 

 
 

  

3240 Pooley Road 

McCulloch 

Road 

Pooley Road 

34



A16-0007 – Page 6 

 
 

Map 4 – Subject Property  

 

 

Map 5 – Agricultural Land Reserve 

 

 

  

Subject Property 

ALR 

(Typical) 

Wine 

Tasting 

Lounge 

Proposed 

Parking Lot 

ALR 

(Typical) 

Existing Parking for 20 

stalls to be reduced to 

10 Handicapped Stalls 

Farm 

Residence 

35



A16-0007 – Page 7 

 
 

2.4 Agricultural Capability / Soil Types 

According to the Canada Land Inventory (CLI), 88,7% of the subject property contains primarily 
Class 5A Agriculture Capability. Class 5A has limitations to crops based on aridity, due to either 
soil permeability or climate or both, and is considered improvable with the addition of irrigation. 
With improvements, this area can be improved to Class *3 capability, which refers to specific 
capability with respect to grapes and tree fruits. Class 1 to Class 3 is considered prime 
agricultural land and relatively rare in the Okanagan.  

The north portion of the property has a similar rating, of Class 5A and Class 4A. However, this 
area is improvable to Class 3 with a limitation due to topography, with steeper slopes. 

Rutland Soils are dominant on the property. These are gently to moderately sloping glaciofluvial 
deposits, which typically have 10 to 25 cm of sandy loam over gravelly loam or very gravelly 
sand. Drainage is rapid. Tree fruits and grapes are typically grown on Rutland soils. 

3.0 Community Planning 

Council and staff are seeking a recommendation from the AAC with respect to the proposed non-
farm use of commercial assemblies in the ALR.  The AAC should pay particular attention to City 
and ALC policies and regulations with respect to non-farm uses and potential demands for a 
greater level of services should the venture become successful.  

In addition, the AAC should consider potential impacts to agricultural land City-wide should this 
precedent be established.  That is to say, the AAC should consider the impact of allowing for 
Commercial Assemblies, either wholly, or as accessory to farming and other agri-tourism efforts. 
Recommendations for safeguards to ensure farming is maintained may be considered.  If this use 
is deemed to be appropriate, but only in select locations, the AAC may wish to recommend 
criteria in establishing appropriate locations along with any constraints that would be 
appropriate. 

Regardless of whether or not the AAC supports the proposed use, AAC members should make 
recommendations in terms of limiting or mitigating undesirable impacts of the use in the event 
that the ALC and City Council approve the use.  

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:  Todd Cashin, Suburban and Rural Planning Manager 
 
 
 
 

Attachments:  

Attachment A – Policies 
Applicant’s Package 
Agricultural Land Capability Map 
Soil Capability Map 

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 
 

Date: April 14, 2015 

RIM No. 1210-21 

To: Agricultural Advisory Committee (AAC) 

From: Community Planning Department (MS) 

Application: A16-0001 Owner:  Hillcrest Farm Market Inc. 

Address: 560 Highway 33 E  Applicant: Chanchal Bal 

Subject: Application to the ALC for a Non-Farm Use (Commercial Assemblies)  

 

1.0 Purpose 

To obtain approval from the Agricultural Land Commission (ALC) under Section 20(3) of the 
Agricultural Land Commission Act for a “Non-farm use” within the Agricultural Land Reserve 
(ALR) to hold commercial assembly activities, including but not limited to weddings, 
anniversaries, reunions, festivals and concerts. 

2.0 Proposal 

2.1 Background 

Hillcrest Farm Market owns and operates 140 acres of farmland in the City of Kelowna. The 
family has been farming in Kelowna for over 100 years. The family has taken steps to diversify 
and vertically expand the operation, through a farm market and cherry processing facility on 
site. The farm produces primarily cherries, but also apples, peaches, plums, table grapes and 
vegetable ground crops. 

Initiatives to diversify the operation since 2010 include the farm café, fruit stand, and bed and 
breakfast. They intend to expand with agri-tourism farm tours in the future, in accordance with 
the ALC Policy #4 – Agri-Tourism in the ALR (attached). One of the activities identified in this 
policy document is: 

 Catered food and beverage service special events where farm products from the farm are 
promoted, but not a service requiring the use of a permanent commercial kitchen.1 

At the time Highway 33 E was expanded to four lanes by the Ministry of Transportation and 
Infrastructure (MOTI) land was required from the farm for the highway. The family negotiated 
with MOTI to salvage the subsoil and topsoil from the land prior to construction. With these soils, 
topographical challenges were modified and 10 acres put into production. In addition, the knoll 
where events are proposed to take place was built. 

 

                                                      
1
 ALC, Policy No. 4 Agri-Tourism in the ALR 

49



A16-0001 – Page 2 

 
 

The Ministry of Agriculture’s Discussion Paper and Proposed Minister’s Bylaw Standards – 
Regulating Agri-tourism and Farm Retail Sales in the Agricultural Land Reserve2 indicates that 
commercial assembly activities require ALC approval as a Non-farm use in the ALR. 
Notwithstanding that the Discussion Paper has not been yet adopted as a Minister’s Standard, this 
application is requesting approval to hold commercial assemblies on the property.  

2.2 Project Description 

The applicant is requesting approval to hold special events on the property, including but not 
limited to weddings, anniversaries, reunions, festivals and concerts. Many of the activities will be 
agri-tourism activities, such as educational school tours, fundraisers, as a sightseeing location for 
tourists, and small farm to table functions to promote our fruits and vegetables. See attached for 
the applicant’s package and Map 1. Other details include: 

 Location and Grading 

o No additional grading of land form changes is proposed as part of this application. 

 Parking 

o The upper parking area proposed for the special events is also used for loading 

cherries (not at the same time). 

o Parking areas proposed are two gravel areas near the portable kitchen, and one 

below the turf area. There is a one way driving loop around the site.  

o If required, overflow parking can be accommodated also by: 

 Parking along the access to the Proposed Special Events area; and 

 Parking at the Fruit Stand parking lot and being transported to site by bin-

trailer or shuttle van. 

o All driving lanes and parking lots will remain as gravel. No resurfacing to asphalt or 

concrete is proposed. 

 Kitchen and Food Service 

o Full food service is supplied for events. The intent is to provide a ‘Farm to Table’ 

experience, using fresh fruit and vegetables grown from the farm. 

o Much of the food is prepared in the existing commercial kitchen at the Farm Retail 

Sales building, with some of it being prepared and finished in the portable kitchen 

at the Special Events area. 

o The Special Events kitchen is portable, and is proposed as part of the application. 

It is self-contained regarding services.  

o Buffet service is provided.                                           

 Liquor Service 

o Liquor Service is not proposed to be served by the applicant. The applicant 

requires that their customers secure a special events liquor license for the event 

they are holding. 

 Services  

                                                      
2 Ministry of Agriculture, Strengthening Farming Program Innovation and Adaptation Services Branch, Sept. 
14, 2015. Regulating Agri-tourism and Farm Retail Sales in the Agricultural Land Reserve. 

50



A16-0001 – Page 3 

 
 

o No additional services (including power, water or septic hookups) are proposed as 

part of the application. 

o Only portable toilets are proposed. These will only be located in the current 

location of a platform, where they are dropped off and picked up after each 

event. No additional permanent septic facilities are proposed as part of the 

application. 

 Structures 

o No permanent structures are proposed as part of the application. 

o Temporary structures (tents) are proposed for the special events. 

o No other spaces are proposed for the special events other than the area shown in 

the plan, including the lunchroom above the processing facility. 

 Capacity: 

o Most events will range from 30 – 100 people. 

o The proposed maximum capacity for most events proposed is 500 people (with the 

exception of below). 

o The proposed maximum capacity for a maximum of twice annually is 1000 people. 

  

51



A16-0001 – Page 4 

 
 

Map 1 –  Farm Operation 

 

  

Farm Market and 
Café, Bed and 
Breakfast, and 
Cherry Processing 

Facility 

Potential Overflow 
Parking Areas 

McKenzie Road 

Commercial 
Assembly Knoll 

Hwy 33 E 

52



A16-0001 – Page 5 

 
 

Map 2 –  Commercial Assembly Venue 

 

2.3 Site Context 

The subject property is located in the Rutland Sector of the City and is within the Agricultural 
Land Reserve.  The Future Land Use of the property is Resource Protection Area (REP).  It is 
zoned A1 – Agriculture 1 (Maps 1 – 4, below) and is outside of the Permanent Growth Boundary.  
The subject properties are accessed by Highway 33 E at the Springfield Road intersection. 

The contiguous farm operation for this application includes 4 properties: 

 1071 McKenzie Road 

 560 Hwy 33 E 

 570 Hwy 33 E  

 700 Hwy 33 E 

Parcel Summary – Combined four properties: 

 Parcel Size: 35 ha (86.7 acres) 
 Elevation: 421 to 493 metres above sea level (masl) 

The subject property is at an urban/rural interface area with the Permanent Growth Boundary 
for urban uses ending at Highway 33.  The large road cross section (averaging approximately 50 
metres) does however provide extensive buffering from farm practices. 

  

Platform for 

Portable Toilets 

Upper Parking Area 

Lower Parking Area 

Access Road to 
Highway 33 E 

Commercial 

Assembly Venue 

Portable Kitchen 

53



A16-0001 – Page 6 

 
 

Zoning and land uses adjacent to the property are as follows: 

Direction Zoning ALR Land Use 

North A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes Orchard 

South 
A1 – Agriculture 1 

Roadway 

No 

No 

Rural Residential 

Highway 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 Yes Rural/agricultural 

West 
A1 – Agriculture 1 

RU1 – Large Lot Housing 

Yes 

Yes/No 

Rural/agricultural 

Residential 

 

Map 3 – Agricultural Land Reserve 

 

2.4 Agricultural Capability / Soil Types 

According to the Canada Land Inventory (CLI), the majority of the unimproved agricultural 
capability of the subject properties is Class 5A, with the primary limitation being aridity. There 
are some areas of Class 6 at the eastern side of the property with limitations of topography and 
aridity. With improvements, notably irrigation, the capability range for the majority of the site 
range from Class 1 to Class 3, which is considered prime agricultural land. (See Land Capability 
Map, attached). 

  

ALR  

54



A16-0001 – Page 7 

 
 

The majority of the soils on the property are Kelowna Soils, which consist of a sandy to loamy 
veneer, between 10 and 30 cm thick, over glacial till. Surface textures are sandy loam or loam 
overlaying gravelly sand or gravelly loam. The soils are Orthic Dark Brown soils are well drained, 
with a moderate water holding capacity. They are well suited for most agricultural crops, and are 
often planted with tree fruits and vineyards. (See Soil Capability Map, attached). 

Oyama soils are present in a lesser amount over the subject properties. These are deep, gravel-
free sandy glaciofluvial deposits. The surface textures are sandy loam with subsoils of sand or 
loamy sand. They are well suited to agriculture but can have low water holding capacities. These 
soils are typically planted to tree fruits and vineyards. 

 

3.0 Community Planning 

Council and staff are seeking a recommendation from the AAC with respect to the proposed non-
farm use of commercial assemblies in the ALR.  The AAC should pay particular attention to City 
and ALC policies and regulations with respect to non-farm uses and potential demands for a 
greater level of services in the way of washrooms, kitchens and parking should the venture 
become successful.   

In addition, the AAC should consider potential impacts to agricultural land City-wide should this 
precedent be established.  That is to say, the AAC should consider the impact of allowing for 
Commercial Assemblies, either wholly, or as accessory to farming and other agri-tourism efforts. 
Recommendations for safeguards to ensure farming is maintained may be considered.  If this use 
is deemed to be appropriate, but only in select locations, the AAC may wish to recommend 
criteria in establishing appropriate locations along with any constraints that would be 
appropriate. 

Regardless of whether or not the AAC supports the proposed use, AAC members should consider 
recommendations in terms of limiting or mitigating undesirable impacts of the use in the event 
that the ALC and City Council approve the use.  

Report prepared by: 

     
Melanie Steppuhn, Land Use Planner 
 
 

Reviewed by:  Todd Cashin, Suburban and Rural Planning Manager 
 
 

Attachments:  

Attachment A – Policies 
Applicant Package 
Agricultural Capability Map 
Agricultural Soils Map 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70


	Agenda
	2.1 East Kelowna Rd 3754 Report A16-0003.pdf
	2.1 East Kelowna Rd 3754 Attachments A16-0003.pdf
	2.1 East Kelowna Rd 3754 Title A16-0003.pdf
	2.2 Pooley Rd 3240 AAC Report A16-0007.pdf
	2.2 Pooley Rd 3240 Attachments A16-0007.pdf
	2.3 Hwy 33 E 560 AAC Report A16-0001.pdf
	2.3 Hwy 33 E 560 AAC Attachments A16-0001.pdf
	3. Draft Minutes - March 10 2016.pdf

